George L. Evans Junior High PTO Bylaws

Article I: Name

The name of the organization shall be the George L. Evans Junior High PTO.

Article II: Purpose

To promote collaboration and cooperation among parents, teachers, faculty, administration and students.

To nurture a spirit of unity.

To provide financial assistance to *supplement* educational and extra-curricular programs.

To promote the welfare of children and youth as a whole.

Article III: Policies

Section 1. This organization shall not seek to direct the administrative activities of the school or to control its policies.

Section 2. This organization shall be noncommercial, nonsectarian and nonpartisan. No commercial enterprise and no candidate shall be endorsed by it. The name of the organization or the names of its officers in their official capacities shall not be used in any connection with a commercial concern or with any partisan interest or for the purpose other than the regular work of the organization. No officers shall be involved with campaigning on the premises.

Section 3. The program of this organization shall be developed through committees and projects to promote supportive educational and service endeavors.

Section 4. This organization may cooperate with other organizations and agencies active in child growth, development and welfare.

Article IV: Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the PTO shall begin on July 1st and end on the following June 30th.

Article V: Membership

Section 1: Membership is open to all parents/guardians of children enrolled at George L. Evans Junior High and teachers and staff who are interested in promoting the welfare of the children of this school. Parents/guardians can attend at any time.

Section 2: Membership dues will not be collected.

Section 3: Only members of the organization shall be eligible to participate in business meetings or to serve in any elected or appointed positions.

Section 4: A majority of the members present must vote to pass the annual budget or other fiscal transactions.

Article VI: Executive Board

Section 1: The Executive Board shall consist of the officers of this organization and the Principal of the school. For the 2011-2012 school year, the Executive Board will consist of the Leadership Council and the Principal of the school.

Section 2:Regular meetings of the Executive Board shall be held as needed during the school year, with the time to be fixed by the Executive Board at its first meeting of the year. At least three (3) days notice shall be given if there is a change in the regular meeting date. Three (3) Executive Board members, including at least two (2) officers, shall constitute a quorum.

Section 3: The Executive Board shall:

- a. Transact necessary business in the intervals between meetings and such other business as may be referred to it by this organization.
- b. Present reports and recommendations to the regular meetings
- c. Approve bills that exceed the budgeted line items or are new to the budget
- d. Prepare and submit a budget for the year to be approved at the first general meeting in the fall

Article VII: Officers and their election

Section 1: Each officer of this PTO shall be a member of this PTO

Section 2: Officers: The officers will be: President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer. The principal will be part of the executive board. Officers shall assume their official duties July 1st and shall serve a maximum two year term in the same office, unless the position cannot be filled. If an officer position cannot be filled by July 1st, the incumbent will be requested to remain for one additional term, or until the position can be filled.

Section 3: Officers shall be elected by ballot annually. If there is only one nominee for any office, the secretary will call a motion to declare the nominee to the position without a formal vote.

Section 4. There shall be an election committee consisting of the principal, the current president and 3 PTO members. The committee shall be responsible for soliciting at least one nominee for each officer position and presenting the list of the nominees at the April meeting. Officer responsibilities will be shared with nominees prior to the April meeting.

Section 5: All executive board positions will run from July1-June 30 in conjunction with the fiscal year.

Section 6: Executive Board and Vacancies - The Executive Board may vote to remove any officer who fails to perform the duties of that office. In case a vacancy occurs in the office of President, the Vice-President shall serve as President for the unexpired term. A vacancy occurring in any other office shall be filled for the unexpired term by a person appointed by the Executive Board.

Section 7: No officer shall serve more than 2 terms in the same office without approval by the executive board.

Section 8: The financial records must be audited annually and upon change of Treasurer.

Section 9: An Auditing Committee of at least three (3) members shall be appointed by the Executive Board at the end of each fiscal year, and may not include members who are authorized to sign checks. The committee shall examine the treasurer's records within 30 days of the end of the fiscal year and report its findings to the membership. By decision of the Executive Board, a professional auditor may be used.

Section 10: For the 2011-2012 School Year the PTO shall be governed by a Leadership Council, consisting of the principal of Evans School and at least one representative from each of the feeder schools. The Leadership Council will share responsibilities for monthly meetings and other PTO activities. A Treasurer and Secretary shall be named for 2011-2012 from the membership of the Leadership Council.

Article VIII: Duties of Officers

Section 1. The president shall:

- a. Preside at all meetings of this organization and the Executive Board.
- b. Be a member ex-officio of all committees.
- c. Appoint members to special committees.
- d. Perform such other duties as may be assigned by the organization or the Executive Board.
- e. Oversee the work of the organization done by other officers or chairpersons as appropriate.
- f. Annually collect detailed chairperson committee information to pass on to the next vear's chairs.
- g. Serve as liaison for communication with principal and superintendent's office.
- h. May sign PTO checks.

Section 2: The Vice-President shall:

- a. Assist the President.
- b. Perform the duties of the President in his/her absence.
- c. Chair the Auditing Committee and present auditing committee to officers for approval.
- d. Oversee all fundraising activities.
- e. Remain in contact with all fundraising chairpersons.
- f. Maintain fundraising calendar throughout the year.
- g. May not sign PTO checks.

Section 3: The Secretary shall:

- a. Record the minutes of all meetings of this organization and the Executive Board.
- b. Have a current copy of the bylaws.
- c. Conduct correspondence of the organization as directed.
- d. Perform such other duties as may be assigned.
- e. May sign PTO checks.
- f. Provide approved minutes to the Unit 5 webmaster for publication.

Section 4: The Treasurer shall:

- a. Receive all monies of this organization and keep an accurate record of receipts and expenditures.
- b. Place all monies in PTO account.
- c. Pay out funds in accordance with the budget approved by the membership and authorized by voucher. Checks that exceed the original budgeted amount by more than 10% must be approved by the PTO Officers and Principal.
- d. Present written financial statement at every meeting of the organization and at other times as requested by the Executive Board, making a full report at the annual meeting in May.

- e. Provide the checkbooks, all bank statements, canceled and voided checks, and deposit slips, treasurer's record book and receipt book, vouchers and invoices for all disbursements to the Auditing Committee.
- f. Be responsible for completion and filing of appropriate forms as may be required by Internal Revenue Service regulations no later than the date established.
- g. Be responsible for completion and filing of appropriate forms as may be required by Internal Revenue Service regulations no later than the date established.
- h. Be responsible for securing an insurance policy and appropriate bond for the PTO
- i. Participate in the development of annual budget

Article IX: PTO Meetings

Section 1: Regularly scheduled meetings shall be held no less than four (4) times during the school year. The May meeting shall be the annual meeting where election of officers and appointment of chairpersons will occur. The audit report and proposed budget will be presented at the first scheduled meeting after the beginning of the school year. Section 2: Special meetings may be scheduled by principal and executive board. Section 3: The annual schedule of meetings shall be made available to all members by the first meeting of the year.

Article X: Standing Committees:

Section 1: Only members of this organization shall be eligible to serve in any elected or appointed position.

Section 2: Special committees may be created by the Executive Board or the membership as the need arises.

Section 3: Chairs of committees will be appointed for the following year at the annual meeting in April.

Section 4: The chairperson of each standing committee shall maintain detailed records of the committee's work. This information will be given to the President to pass on to the new committee chairperson each year.

ARTICLE XI – AMENDMENTS

Section 1: These bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of this organization by majority vote of the members present provided that notice of the proposed amendment shall have been given at the previous regular meeting and/or notice of the proposed amendment has been made available to all members 5 days in advance of the regular meeting at which the amendment is to be considered.

Section 3: In the event of the dissolution of this organization, its assets shall be entrusted to the administration of George L. Evans Junior High School.

Adopted (date):

George L. Evans Junior High School Principal

PTO Leadership Council:

Hug. 27, 2011

aua Donnée

angela mion

Danin & Schuster